
Page 1 of 2 
Agenda – Regular Board Meeting –January 26, 2023 

CHILDREN’S BOARD OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JANUARY 26, 2023 ~ 3:00 PM 
AGENDA 

 
MISSION:  The Children’s Board invests in partnerships and quality programs to support the 

success of all children and families in Hillsborough County. 
 

CALL TO ORDER                      A. Mayts 

 Attendance Verification                    K. Austin 
       Quorum Verification                     A. Mayts 

 Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance                A. Mayts 
  

PUBLIC COMMENT                     A. Mayts 

The Children’s Board of Hillsborough County welcomes comments from the public. 
Those who wish to address the Board may do so at this time.  Those addressing 

the Board should state their full name and affiliation for the official record.  
In the interest of time, we ask that one person be designated to speak on behalf of  
a constituency and that all comments are limited to three (3) minutes. 

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DISCLOSURE               K. Parris 

 

ACTION ITEMS 
1. Approval; November 24, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes        A. Mayts 

2. Approval: FY 2022 – 2023 Budget Amendment and Resolution                                                T. Williams 
3. Approval; Modification to Contract with Hillsborough County BOCC                                       R. Bacon 

for Social Services Funds   

4. Approval; FY 2023 All (4) Focus Areas Investment Grants                                                          M. Negron 
5. Approval; PRO 2023-03 Level (2) Uniting Grant: Padres de Crianza                                        M. Negron 
6. Approval; Policies and Procedures                J. Houser              

 
REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS  

1. Executive Director Reports                        K. Parris 
A. Activities – November 18, 2022 – January 26, 2023  

B. Community Alliance 

C. Legislative Priorities:         

       2.   Programs Reports                                                                                                                                    M. Negron 

A. FY 2021-2022 Presentation on Outcome Highlights               

3. Finance Reports                            T. Williams 

4. Human Resources Report                                                             J. Houser 

- Introduction of Tabitha Easevoli, Senior Accountant 

- Introduction of Samara Cobb, Program Services Coordinator - ASO 

- Introduction of Angela Leavy, Program Services Coordinator - ASO 



Page 2 of 2 
Agenda – Regular Board Meeting –January 26, 2023 

OLD/NEW BUSINESS 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Contract Signature Logs (ASO, Programs, Vendors) 
2. December 2022 Financial Statements 
3. Good News! 

 

IMPORTANT DATES TO REMEMBER  
  

February 
 
Executive/Finance Committee Meeting   February 09, 2023                      12:00 PM               
 
Regular Board Meeting        February 23, 2023            3:00 PM            
     
 

March 
 

 
Executive/Finance Committee Meeting   March 09, 2023                 12:00 PM             
 
Regular Board Meeting        March 23, 2023             3:00 PM 
 
 

April 
 

Executive/Finance Committee Meeting   April 13, 2023          12:00 PM 
 
Regular Board Meeting                                                  April 27, 2023      3:00 PM 
 

May 
 

Executive/Finance Committee Meeting   May 11, 2023                   12:00 PM 
 
Regular Board Meeting        May 25, 2023                    3:00 PM 
 

June 
 

Executive/Finance Committee Meeting   June 08, 2023                   12:00 PM 
 
Regular Board Meeting        June 22, 2023                    3:00 PM 
 



CBHC Regular Board Meeting 
November 17, 2022 - Page 1 of 3 

CHILDREN’S BOARD OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

November 17, 2022 ~ 3:00 PM 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
Subject Regular Board Meeting Date November 17, 2022 

Facilitator Andy Mayts, Chair Meeting Time 3:00 PM 

Location 

Conference Call: 1-813-515-8094 
Access Code: 479 204 397# 
1002 East Palm Ave. 
Tampa, FL 33605 

Actual Meeting Time 3:01 PM – 3:40 PM 

Adjourned 3:40 PM 

Board 
Member 
Attendance 

Andy Mayts, Chair 

Robin DeLaVergne, Vice-Chair 
Beth Pasek, Secretary/Treasurer -absent 

Megan Proulx Dempsey 
Gwen Myers -phone 
Lynn Gray  
Sarah Naumowich 

Addison Davis  
Katherine Essrig 
Ed Narain  
Chris Letsos-absent 

Other 
Attendees 

Kelley Parris, Executive Director 

David Adams, CBHC Board Attorney 
Kristina Austin, Recorder 

Paula Scott, CBHC Staff- absent 

 

Maria Negron, CBHC Staff 

Jan Houser, CBHC Staff 

Tonia Williams, CBHC Staff 

Rebecca Bacon, CBHC Staff 

 

Jamie Robe, CBHC Staff 

Genet Stewart, CBHC Staff- 

Dexter Lewis, CBHC Staff 

Leslie White, CBHC Staff 

SUMMARY 

No. Topic Highlights 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
                             
 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

A. Mayts called the meeting to order at 3:01 PM. 
 

• A. Mayts called for Board attendance verification.  
 

• E. Narain led the Invocation. 
 

• A. Mayts invited Marcus, a young man attending on behalf of the Boys 
& Girls Club, to lead the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

• A. Mayts called for Public Comment; there was none.  

II. ACTION ITEMS  

 1. 10-27-2022 Regular Board 
Meeting Minutes  

 
 

Motion (1) 

A. Mayts requested approval of the October 27, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
minutes.  
 
Motion by Katherine Essrig to approve the October 27, 2022 Regular Board 
Meeting minutes; second by Ed Narain. Motion carried (9-0). 

 2. Approval of Executive 
Director Contract Extension  

 
                                      
                                              Motion (2) 

D. Adams requested approval of Executive Director Contract Extension. 
 
 
Motion by Megan Proulx Dempsey to approve the Executive Director 
Contract Extension; second by Ed Narain. Motion carried (9-0). 

 
 
 

  



CBHC Regular Board Meeting 
November 17, 2022 - Page 2 of 3 

SUMMARY CONT. 

 3. Approval of FY 2023 School 
District Resource Specialist 
Investment Grant 
 
 
                                     
 
 
 
                                                
                                              Motion (3) 

M. Negron requested approval of the FY 2023 School District Resource Specialist 
Investment Grant. 

• Funding with (1) Hillsborough County organization to support (1) 
program from January 9, 2023 to September 30, 2023; 

• Total Allocation not to exceed $837,937; 
• Request for Proposals (RFP) released on September 1, 2022, with an 

allocation of up to $1,000,000; 
• A total of (1) proposal was received. 

 
Motion by Ed Narain to approve the FY 2023 School District Resource 
Specialist Investment Grant; second by Addison Davis. Motion carried (9-0). 

 4. Approval of FY 2023 Healthy 
and Safe Uniting Grant 
                              
                                      
 
 
                                              
                                              Motion (4) 

M. Negron requested approval of FY2023 Healthy and Safe Uniting Grant. 
• Funding with (1) Hillsborough County organization for Healthy & Safe 

                 Uniting Grant to support (1) program from January 9, 2023 to   
September 30, 2023. 

•    Total Allocation not to exceed $330,000; 
 

Motion by Addison Davis to approve of FY2023 Healthy and Safe Uniting Grant; 
second by Megan Proulx Dempsey. Motion carried (9-0). 

 5. Approval to Release an Intent 
to Negotiate (ITN) for Trauma-
Informed Schools 
                                                                                                
                                        
                                                   
 
                                             
                                              Motion (5)     

G. Stewart requested approval to release in January 2023 an Intent to Negotiate 
(ITN) for trauma-informed schools. 

•    Total Allocation not to exceed $1,000,000; 
• Selected organization to partner with Frost Elementary and Giunta 

Middle to create academic focused, trauma-informed schools; 
• Both schools are in ONEhillsborough zipcode, 33619. 

 
Motion by Robin DeLaVergne to approve release of an ITN for trauma-informed 
schools; second by Ed Narain. Motion carried (9-0). 

III. PROVIDER PRESENTATION 
 
 
 
 

M. Negron introduced Mary Dillon, Vice President of the Youth Development 
Division of Boys and Girls Clubs of Tampa Bay (BGCTB). She was joined by Ana 
Barrios, Senior Grant Manager for BGCTB.  
 
M. Dillon and A. Barrios provided the following information on the Boys and Girls 
Clubs of Tampa Bay:  

• BGCTB has (25) twenty-five sites in the Tampa Bay area and serves 
thousands of kids each year; 

• Programming at the sites target Academic Success, Health & Wellness, 
and Character & Leadership Skills; 

• The Brandon Art Masters (BAM) program exposes participants to fine 
art, mixed media, visual arts instruction and offers children in grades K-
5 opportunities to publicly present their own works of art. 

 
Within the BAM program, the following outcomes were achieved from March to 
September of 2022:  

• (100%) eighty-five percent of children improved their art skills through 
their Youth Art Portfolios; 

• (99%) seventy-five percent increased their self-esteem using the Child 
Rosenberg Self-Esteem Scale;  

• (60%) seventy percent presented in front of an audience during their 
Showcase 

 
Marcus, a participant in the BAM program, spoke to the Board about his 
experiences in the Brandon Art Masters program.  
 
 



CBHC Regular Board Meeting 
November 17, 2022 - Page 3 of 3 

SUMMARY CONT. 

IV. REPORTS  

 1. Executive Director Reports K. Parris reported attending (12) significant meetings between October 27, 2022–
November 17, 2022.  
 
The following updates were provided to the Board: 

•     On 11/17/22, K. Parris met with the Intensive Family Support Team 
(IFST) from the Children’s Network of Hillsborough County (CNHC); 

•      The IFST provided promising data on keeping children in their homes; 
•      CNHC is considering adding a licensed mental health professional to 

their  current model; 
•      The Early Learning Coalition of Hillsborough County hired Dr. Fred 

Hicks as their new Executive Director.  

 
2. Programs Report M. Negron provided brief updates on funding releases and reviewed the FY 2022 

Summer Passports Program Report. 
 

 
3. Human Resources Report 

 

J. Houser introduced Daffany Browning-Brunson, Procurement & Quality 
Coordinator 

V. ADJOURNMENT The meeting adjourned at 3:40 PM 

MOTIONS 

1. Motion by Katherine Essrig to approve the October 27, 2022 Regular Board Meeting minutes; second by Ed 
Narain. Motion carried (9-0). 

2. Motion by Megan Proulx Dempsey to approve the Executive Director Contract Extension; second by Ed Narain. 
Motion carried (9-0). 

3. Motion by Ed Narain to approve the FY 2023 School District Resource Specialist Investment Grant; second by 
Addison Davis. Motion carried (9-0). 

4. Motion by Addison Davis to approve of FY2023 Healthy and Safe Uniting Grant; second by Megan Proulx Dempsey. 
Motion carried (9-0). 

5. Motion by Robin DeLaVergne to approve release of an ITN for trauma-informed schools; second by Ed Narain. 
Motion carried (9-0). 

 
 
READ AND APPROVED BY: 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
ANDREW MAYTS 
BOARD CHAIR 



  ACTION ITEM NO. 2  

Approval of FY 2022 - 2023 Budget Amendment 

Action Item 2 - Page 1 of 2 

Initiator:  Tonia Williams, Director of Finance 
 
Action:  Approval of FY 2022 - 2023 Budget Amendment and Attached Resolution 
 
Date:   Regular Board Meeting, Thursday, January 26, 2023 
 
Recommended Action 
 

• Increase FY 2022 - 2023 Administrative Services Organization (ASO) Revenue and Program 
Funding by $200,000 for a new total budget amount of $66,710,314 and approve the 
attached Resolution #22/23-05. 

 
Background      

• The Children’s Board ASO began managing Hillsborough County Social Services funding in 
Fiscal Year 2017 -2018. 

• The original contract amount was $300,000. 
• Hillsborough County BOCC would like to add $200,000 additional funding to the contract, 

which is being amended for a new total contract amount and budget of $500,000.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  ACTION ITEM NO. 2  

Approval of FY 2022 - 2023 Budget Amendment 

Action Item 2 - Page 2 of 2 

Millage Rate:

  Rolled-Back @ .4589 FY 2022 - 2023 FY 2022 - 2023 FY 2022 - 2023
Original Budget Amended
Budget Amendments Budget

Revenue
Ad-Valorem Taxes 61,929,405        -                       61,929,405        
Investment Income 892,000              -                       892,000              
Administrative Services Organization Funding (ASO) 400,000              200,000              600,000              
Other Community Partner Funding 410,000              -                       410,000              
Miscellaneous Income 11,000                -                       11,000                

Total Revenue 63,642,405      200,000          63,842,405      

Expenditures
Program Expenditures

Program Funding (Continuation Grants) 40,428,582        200,000              40,628,582        
New Program Funding (unallocated) 12,825,000        -                       12,825,000        

Total Program Expenditures 53,253,582        200,000              53,453,582        
Operating Expenditures

Employee Salaries and Benefits 5,507,400           -                       5,507,400           
Contracted Professional Services 634,840              -                       634,840              
CBHC FRC Occupancy Expenditures 475,767              -                       475,767              
CBHC Facility Expenditures 343,187              -                       343,187              
Other Operating 540,889              -                       540,889              

Total Operating Expenditures 7,502,083           -                       7,502,083           
Capital Expenditures 4,000,000           -                       4,000,000           
Mandatory Government Fees 1,754,648           -                       1,754,648           
Total Expenditures 66,510,314      200,000          66,710,314      
Net Spend Down of Fund Balance (2,867,909)       -                 (2,867,909)       

Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023 Amended Budget
Children's Board Of Hillsborough County

October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023
SUMMARY

 
 



Resolution Number 22 / 23 - 05 

RESOLUTION AMENDING BUDGET 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CHILDREN’S BOARD OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA; AMENDING THE 

FINAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022 - 2023; AUTHORIZING STAFF TO PREPARE AN AMENDED BUDGET; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Children’s Board of Hillsborough County, Florida, 

that: 

1. The attached Action Item 2 presented at the Board’s January 26, 2023 Board Meeting is 

hereby approved as an Amendment to the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023. 

2. The staff of the Children’s Board is hereby authorized to prepare an amended final budget 

for Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023 incorporating the budget amendments described in attached 

Action Item 2. 

3. This Resolution will take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 

DULY ADOPTED at a Public Meeting this 26th day of January 2023. 

 

 Time Adopted  _______________ PM 

 
      __________________________________ 
      Andrew Mayts 
      Children’s Board of Hillsborough County 
      Chair 
 

ATTEST: 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH 

 

I, Robin DeLaVergne, Vice Chair of the Children's Board of Hillsborough County, Florida, DO HEREBY 

CERTIFY that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Resolution adopted by the 

Children's Board of Hillsborough County, Florida, at its meeting of January 26, 2023, as the same appears 

of record in the Minute Book of the Children's Board of Hillsborough County, Florida. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this 26th day of January 2023. 

 

_________________________________ 

Beth Pasek, Secretary/Treasurer 



  ACTION ITEM NO. 3   

Approval of Contract Modification with Hillsborough County BOCC 

Action Item – 3 
 

Initiator:  Rebecca Bacon, Director of the ASO 
 
Action:  Approval of Contract Modification with Hillsborough County BOCC Social Services 
 
Date:   Regular Board Meeting, January 26, 2023 
 
Recommended Action 
 

• To Approve a contract modification with Hillsborough County BOCC Social Services to 
increase flexible funding by $200,000 for a new total of $500,000 for the period of October 
1, 2022, to September 30, 2023, to be administered through the Administrative Services 
Organization. 

 
Background 
   

• The Children’s Board ASO began managing Hillsborough County Social Services funding in 
Fiscal Year 2017 -2018.   

• The goal is to enhance services to vulnerable families throughout Hillsborough County who 
are committed to becoming self-sufficient.   

• The funds support the wraparound process and development of a family support plans in 
existing case management programs.   

• The ASO manages the flexible funds and provides accounts payable services, detailed 
financial reporting, provider credentialing and network management, training and technical 
assistance, quality assurance, and monitoring. 

• A new contract was initiated in Fiscal Year 2019 with four renewals.  
• The contract was modified in March of 2022 to add four more renewal periods, establish 

maximum allowable amounts for each service, and update the request for payment process. 
• The contract is being modified for a second time to reflect the following changes: 

o Increase the available funding to $500,000 based on an increased need for services 
o Expand the service level from one month of assistance to two months of assistance 

where required to avoid eviction  
o Remove water as an allowable service. 

 
Attachments 
A. Original Contract 
B. Contract Modification #1 
C. Administrative Renewal – Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023 
D. Contract Modification #2 































































































  ACTION ITEM NO. #4A  

Approval of FY 2023 All (4) Focus Areas Investment Grants 

Action Item 4A - Page 1 of 2 

Initiator: María Negrón, Director of Programs 
 
Action: Approval of FY 2023 All (4) Focus Areas Investment Grants 
 
Date: Regular Board Meeting Thursday, January 26, 2023 
 
Recommended Action 
Recommend approval of funding Investment Grants with (3) Hillsborough County organizations to support 
(3) programs from March 1, 2023 to September 30, 2023 for a total request up to $1,989,401. 

 
Background  
A Request for Proposals (RFP) was released on August 26, 2022, with an allocation of up to $3,500,000.  A 
total of (5) proposals were received.  (5) proposals proceeded to the Community Review Team 

 
On December 7, 2022, María Negrón facilitated the Community Review Team meeting.  Community Review 
Team members included: Dave Rogoff – Community Member, Janet White of the Museum of Science and 
Industry, and Kathy Smith of the US Department of Veteran Affairs.   
 

 
Summary of All (4) Focus Areas Investment Grant Proposals Recommended: 
 

Proposer / Program Name Score 
FY 2023 
Request 

FY 2024 
Request 

 
Housing Authority of the City of Tampa  
Building Hope  
o Provides families and children living in Tampa Housing Authority’s 

selected developments and their surrounding zip codes with 
positive experiences to build resilience.  Families participate in 
case management and quarterly events.  Children receive 
developmental screening.  Elementary/middle school youth 
receive afterschool and summer programs. 

Focus Area: Developmentally on Track, Ready to Learn & Succeed, 
Family Support 
Location: Housing Authority of the City of Tampa properties and in 
surrounding zip codes 33602, 33605, 33607. 
 

91.67% $702,727 $1,199,335 



ACTION ITEM NO. #4A 

Approval of FY 2023 All (4) Focus Areas Investment Grants 

Action Item 4A - Page 2 of 2

Easter Seals Florida, Inc. 
The Incredible Years with Easter Seals 
o A set of interlocking, comprehensive, and developmentally based

programs targeting parents, teacher, and children.  Programs are
designed to work jointly to promote emotional, social, and
academic competence and to prevent, reduce, and treat
behavioral and emotional problems in children ages 3-8.

Focus Area: : Developmentally on Track, Ready to Learn & Succeed, 
Family Support 
Location: County-wide 

84.33% $519,958 $959,046 

Florida State University, Learning Systems Institute 
Cognitively Guided Instruction (CGI) Project  
o Evidence-based mathematics teacher professional development

and school year support to VPK-3rd grade teachers in Hillsborough
County Public Schools. Teachers in the program will have more
accurate knowledge of student’s mathematics learning
progression helping them make more informed decisions about
teaching strategies.

Focus Area: Ready to Learn & Succeed 
Location: County-wide 

80.00% $766,716 $1,012,095 

Total n/a $1,989,401 $3,170,476 



ACTION ITEM NO. #4B 

Approval of FY 2023 All (4) Focus Areas Investment Grants 

Action Item 4B - Page 1 of 1

Initiator: María Negrón, Director of Programs 

Action: Approval of FY 2023 All (4) Focus Areas Investment Grants 

Date: Regular Board Meeting Thursday, January 26, 2023 

Recommended Action 
Recommend approval of funding an Investment Grant with a Hillsborough County organization to support a 
Community Maternity Clinic program from March 1, 2023 to September 30, 2023 for a total request up to 
$702,297. 

Background  
A Request for Proposals (RFP) was released on August 26, 2022, with an allocation of up to $3,500,000.  A 
total of (5) proposals were received.  (5) proposals proceeded to the Community Review Team 

On December 7, 2022, María Negrón facilitated the Community Review Team meeting.  Community Review 
Team members included: Dave Rogoff – Community Member, Janet White of the Museum of Science and 
Industry, and Kathy Smith of the US Department of Veteran Affairs.   

This memo has been separated from the other (3) recommendations on 1/26/2023 so that a Board member 
may abstain from the vote. 

Summary of All (4) Focus Areas Investment Grant Proposals Recommended: 

Proposer / Program Name Score 
FY 2023 
Request 

FY 2024 
Request 

St Joseph’s Hospital Inc. 
Community Maternity Clinic 
o Install and operate a community maternity clinic to provide

holistic prenatal care to uninsured and underinsured pregnant
individuals in Hillsborough County to increase access to care and
improve health and safety for children.

Focus Area: Healthy & Safe 
Location: County-wide 

88.67% $702,297 $901,646 



ACTION ITEM NO. 5 

Approval of FY 2023 Padres de Crianza Grant 

Action Item 5 - Page 1 of 1

Initiator: María Negrón, Director of Programs 

Action: Approval of FY 2023 Padres de Crianza Grant 

Date: Regular Board Meeting Thursday, January 26, 2023 

Recommended Action 
Recommend approval of funding with Gulf Coast Jewish Family & Community Services for a Uniting Grant to 
support the Padres de Crianza program from March 1, 2023 to September 30, 2023 for a total request up to 
$186,059. 

Background  
A Request for Proposals (RFP) was released on August 29, 2022, with an allocation of up to $500,000.  A 
total of (2) proposals were received.  (2) proposals proceeded to the Community Review Team. 

On January 12, 2023, María Negrón facilitated the Community Review Team meeting.  Community Review 
Team members included: Emily Tinti of Lutheran Family Services, Mario Hernandez of University of South 
Florida, Carlita Miller of Eckerd Connects, John Florio of Regions Bank, and Carlene Ulacia of United Way 
Suncoast. 

Summary of Padres de Crianza Uniting Grant Proposals Reviewed 

Proposer / Program Name Score 
FY 2023 
Request 

FY 2024 
Request 

Gulf Coast Jewish Family & Community Services 
Padres de Crianza  
o A Padres de Crianza program designed after the agency’s Kinship

Program.  This program will extend Kinship services to
relatives/non-relatives who provide primary care for
Hispanic/Latino children to promote and sustain family stability.

Focus Area: Family Support 
Location: County-wide 

89.60% $186,059 $345,488 

Total n/a $186,059 $345,488 



  ACTION ITEM NO. 6 

Approval of Board Policies and Procedures 

Action Item 6- Page 1 of 1 

 
Initiator:  Jan Houser, Director of Human Resources 

Action:  Approval of Policies and Procedures 

Date:   Regular Board Meeting, Thursday, January 26, 2023 

 
Recommended Action: 
 
Recommend approval of the attached Board Procedure 1B.1.02 “General Agency Operations”.   
 
Background: 
 
The referenced Board Procedure 1B.1.02 “General Agency Operations” has been reviewed and 
provided for Board approval.   

 

Action Type Policy    
        

 Policy/ Procedure Number 

Revision General Agency Operations 1B.1.02 subsection 1.14 
 

Attachment: 
 
A. Revision of Board Procedure 1B.1.02 “General Agency Operations” 



CHILDREN’S BOARD          1B.1.02   
Board Policies and Procedures General Agency Operations 
 

Page 1 of 6 
   

Subject: General Agency Operations 
Effective Date: November 28, 1990 
Review Date: Annual Last Revision: REV.8 

September 25, 2008 
January 24, 2013 
April 25, 2013 
November 20, 2014 
November 19, 2015 
January 26, 2017 
August 25, 2022 
January 26, 2023 

 
1.0 POLICIES PERTAINING TO GENERAL AGENCY OPERATIONS 
 
1.1 Duties of the Executive Director 
 
The duties and powers of the Executive Director shall include the development and 
recommendation of a strategic plan for meeting the needs of children and youth in 
Hillsborough County; the development and recommendation of an annual budget by 
category; implementation of the approved budget; the development and 
recommendation of Board policies; establishment of agency operating procedures; the 
hiring and termination of employees; the development and recommendation of a salary 
classification plan and fringe benefit program; maintenance of all official records; and 
the performance of such other duties as are normally performed by an Executive 
Director. 
 
The agency’s operating procedures shall require that any member of the public, not part 
of a scheduled program, who is on the second floor of the Children’s Board building 
after normal business hours shall be accompanied at all times by an employee of the 
Children’s Board. The requirement to be accompanied shall not apply to Children’s 
Board contractors whose contract authorizes such access. 
 
1.2 Staff Affiliation with other Agencies 
 
No member of the Children's Board staff will serve as a Board member of any agency 
funded by the Children's Board. Staff may serve as non-voting consultants to such 
agencies for the purpose of providing technical assistance with the approval of the 
Executive Director of the Children's Board. Staff already serving on governing bodies of 
agencies which make application for funding to Children's Board will take a leave of 
absence until a decision is made regarding the application. If funding is approved, the 
staff member concerned must resign membership on the governing authority. No staff 
member will accept any compensation from an agency funded by the Children's Board. 
 
 
 



CHILDREN’S BOARD          1B.1.02   
Board Policies and Procedures General Agency Operations 
 

Page 2 of 6 
   

 
 
1.3 Coordination with Other Children's Services Planning and Funding Agencies 
 
Staff will make reasonable efforts to coordinate planning, funding, and evaluation 
activities with other appropriate planning and funding agencies so as to eliminate 
unnecessary duplication of services and improve the overall quality of these activities. 
 
1.4 Technical Assistance 
 
Staff will serve as consultants and provide technical assistance to human service 
agencies and community groups interested in improving, expanding, or providing new 
Children's Services in accordance with approved priorities. 
 
1.5 Endorsements 
 
Requests for endorsement of various activities, or projects, or legislation from 
organizations and groups will be submitted to the Board for its consideration. In the 
event the deadline established by the organization requesting the endorsement occurs 
after the Board meeting materials have been finalized for Board agenda preparation 
occurs before the endorsement must be given, the Executive Director may provide a 
staff endorsement, if appropriate. 
 
Any request for endorsement concerning a proposed State or Federal tax increase or 
decrease should be submitted to each Board Member in writing at least 30 days prior to 
the Board meeting at which the request will be considered for action. Only tax increase 
or decrease proposals/legislation that would potentially have a direct impact on the 
Children’s Board of Hillsborough County shall be considered for endorsement. 
 
1.6 Universal Access to Children’s Board Funded Services and Resources 
 
Services and resources funded by the Children’s Board are available to all families and 
children who are eligible for services and resources as determined by the funded 
agency’s eligibility and admission criteria. 
 
1.7 Budget Modifications 
 
Provider Program Funding 
The Board will approve the allocation of Children's Board funds to each eligible agency 
upon recommendation of the Executive Director. At the request of a funded agency, the 
Executive Director may adjust the line items of program budgets of funded agencies, 
including transfer of funds between programs operated by the same agency, and 
provided such transfer does not increase the aggregate allocation to the agency 
approved by the Board. 
 



CHILDREN’S BOARD          1B.1.02   
Board Policies and Procedures General Agency Operations 
 

Page 3 of 6 
   

 
Children’s Board Budget 
The Executive Director may adjust the categories of the Children’s Board administrative 
budget (Personnel, Fringe Benefits, Operating Expenses, and Capital Outlay), provided 
such action does not increase the aggregate administrative budget previously approved 
by the Board and, pursuant to Section 189.418(6), Florida Statutes, such amendments 
will be presented for approval to the Children’s Board. The budget amendment must be 
adopted by Resolution. 
 
1.8 Withholding of Reimbursement 
 
The Executive Director is authorized to withhold reimbursement to funded agencies, 
vendors, or contractors for failure to comply with any general or special condition as 
stated in the contract, and for any other reason believed appropriate, after consultation 
with and concurrence of the most available senior Board officer (Chair, Vice Chair, 
Treasurer, or Secretary in that order). Any such withholding of reimbursement will be 
reported at the next Board meeting.  Reimbursement may resume after the agency, 
vendor, or contractor has met such conditions as the Executive Director and the senior 
Board officer have approved. Notice of this action will be reported at the next meeting. 
 
1.9 Direct Administration of Programs 
 
The Children's Board will generally limit any directly-administered program efforts to 
demonstration projects which, if successful and continued beyond the demonstration 
period, will be transferred to a service provider. Staff will consider contracting with a 
service provider before recommending that the Children's Board directly undertake the 
project. 
 
1.10 General Conditions 
 
The General Terms and Conditions contained in standard agency contracts are also 
Board approved policies. The extent and scope of the Program Monitoring described in 
the General Terms and Conditions has been determined as a planning rather than an 
operational level decision. 
 
1.11 Fiscal Year 
 
The Children’s Board fiscal year will be October 1st through September 30th. 
 
1.12 Funded Agency Budgets 
 
The Children's Board requires a total program budget showing all revenues and 
expenditures for the program from each funded agency. Any additional Children's Board 
funds authorized for specific line items as a result of a budget or contract amendment 



CHILDREN’S BOARD          1B.1.02   
Board Policies and Procedures General Agency Operations 
 

Page 4 of 6 
   

may not be expended unless all other sources of revenues as indicated in the original 
program budget are exhausted. 
 
The Children's Board funds allocated to a funded agency that are not expended by the 
end of the contract term will revert to the Children's Board, unless otherwise negotiated 
between the Children’s Board and the funded agency 
 
1.13 Audit Requirements 
 
The Agreement between the Children's Board and Funded Agencies 
The Agreement between the Children's Board and funded agencies states that for any 
funded agency’s fiscal year ending during the term of the Agreement and for any fiscal 
year during which revenues or expenditures are recognized by the provider for the 
program covered by the Agreement, the provider will submit to the Children’s Board 
(within 180 days after the close of the provider’s fiscal year) year-end audited financial 
statements and any related management letters, any related communications or reports 
on internal control, and any related reports on compliance with laws and regulations for 
all contracts over six (6) months. 
 
A Review of the Provider Agency’s Financial Statements 
A review of the provider agency’s financial statements is acceptable for provider 
agencies with a current fiscal year budget of less than $300,000. 
 
Newly Funded Agencies without Audits or Reviews 
For provider agencies who have not previously received Children’s Board funding and 
who do not have audited or reviewed financial statements, the Children’s Board staff 
may conduct a review of such provider agency’s fiscal capacity during the first quarter of 
the contract period unless the contract period is for less than six (6) months. The 
Children’s Board staff will require that the provider agency put in place a written audit 
preparation process that includes at least the following items: 
 

• Preparation of monthly financial statements 
 

• General ledger (reconciled) 
 

• Source documents (checks, reconciled bank statements) 
 
The written audit preparation process shall be subject to review and written approval by 
the Children’s Board staff. 
 
An Audit or Review 
An audit or review (depending on the total agency budget amount for such newly funded 
agencies) must be completed by the end of the contract period. 
 
 



CHILDREN’S BOARD          1B.1.02   
Board Policies and Procedures General Agency Operations 
 

Page 5 of 6 
   

Failure to Submit Audits or Reviews 
The approval of the Executive Committee of the Children's Board shall be required to 
continue payments under the Agreement to any provider who has not furnished the 
Children's Board with an acceptable audit or review report within 180 days after the 
close of the provider's fiscal year or before the end of the contract period in the case of 
newly funded agencies who lack prior audits or reviews as described in “Newly Funded 
Agencies Without Audits or Reviews” above. 
 
1.14 Implementation by the Executive Director of Expenditures Approved by the Board 
 
General Expenditure Authorization  
The Board hereby authorizes the expenditure of Children’s Board funds in single 
amounts not to exceed $75,000, if the Executive Director determines that the request 
for each such expenditure meets the following conditions: 
 
1.   The funds are in the budget; 
 
2.   If the request is for programmatic services; 
 

• The request has been evaluated and found by Children’s Board staff to meet the 
established funding requirements applicable to similar projects; 

 
• The scope of service is consistent with the current Board-approved 

Business and Funding Plans; 
 

• The provider is chosen according to the CBHC standard selection process; 
 

• The standard contract is used. 
 
Additional Expenditure Authorizations.  
 

1. The Executive Director is authorized to approve expenditures up to $75,000; 
2. In the absence of the Executive Director a Senior Staff member may authorize 

expenditures not to exceed $15,000 with notification as soon as practical to the 
Executive Director; 

3. Department Managers may authorize expenditures not to exceed $5,000 with 
notification as soon as practical to Senior Staff supervising said department; 

4. Approval of expenditures that do not meet the above conditions must be 
approved by the full Board, except in emergency situations as determined by the 
Executive Director, with notification to the Board Chair as soon as practicable 
and in their absence a member of the Executive Committee. 

 



CHILDREN’S BOARD          1B.1.02   
Board Policies and Procedures General Agency Operations 
 

Page 6 of 6 
   

 
 
Procurement of Services or Products to Support CBHC Operations 
 
There are three methods of procurement: 

• The first is competitive purchasing; 

• The second is purchasing exempt from the competitive process, or sole source 
procurement; 

• The third is state of emergency expenditures. 
At each monthly CBHC Board meeting, a complete list of all contracts signed by the 
Executive Director for the preceding month shall be included in the Board meeting 
materials. 



 
Children’s Board of Hillsborough County 

  Executive Director Report 
                                                          November 18, 2022 – January 26, 2023          54 Meetings 
 

 

 

Dr. Hicks – ELC    
FACCT    
Ocea Wynn – City of Tampa    
Sandra Murman   
FACCT 2022 Annual Retreat   
FACCT 2022 Annual Retreat   
FACCT 2022 Annual Retreat   
Webinar: State of Early Learning: A Childcare community crisis  
MyOn Annual Partner Review  
Gene Earley – Hillsborough County  
Mayor’s Christmas party   
Larissa Baia – Ybor City HCC   
FACCT  
Tori Simmons     
Children’s Network Board Meeting  
CADR  
Virtual FACCT Lunch and Learn  
FACCT  
Charles Davis  
Plant City FRC Christmas Celebration  
Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity Turkey & Gift Giveway    
Hillsborough County Homelessness meeting  
Dr. Sterling   
Leadership Council   
Karen Perez    
Echo Tour   
FACCT   
Children’s Network Board Meeting  
Athena January Meeting    
FACCT   
CALM  
Community Alliance    
CA. Statutory Members meeting   
ECC Stakeholders   
Homelessness Roundtable  
Marlene Spalten – Community Foundation   
CADR  
TTFRC Reception   
MLK Parade   
Myrna Hicks  
HCC   
CBHC Provider Forum  
Mental Health Advisory Council   



 
Children’s Board of Hillsborough County 

  Executive Director Report 
                                                          November 18, 2022 – January 26, 2023          54 Meetings 
 

 

 

Vistra  
Joint HCAB & MGMT Subcommittee  
FACCT  
DCF/ Foster Parent Roundtable Meeting    
ABC Action News Interview 
Bay News 9 Interview 
COSW  
Leadership Council  
Hillsborough County School Board Meeting 
Mayor’s Workforce Council  
MyOn Executive Briefing  

 









































ASO ONLY
FY 2023

Entity/Agency Contract 
Type

Brief Description Contract 
Period

 Contract 
Amount 

 Board 
Approved 

Signed By Date Signed

Contract Signature Log

Christie Collbran dba 

Buddha Belly Birth 

Services, LLC

ASO Provider Post-Partum Doula 11/29/22-

ongoing

Varies No Kelley Parris 12/6/2022

Herminia del P. Rodriguez 

Rivera

ASO Provider Tutor 12/1/22-

ongoing

Varies No Kelley Parris 12/6/2022

Phekila Johnson dba 

Brown Sugar Wellness, 

LLC

ASO Provider Individual Therapy 12/2/22-

ongoing

Varies No Kelley Parris 12/6/2022

Phekila Johnson dba 

Brown Sugar Wellness, 

LLC

Agreement Business Associate 

Agreement

12/5/22-

ongoing

Varies No Kelley Parris 12/6/2022

Project LINK MOU MOU for allocation of 

ASO funds

12/22/2022-

9/30/2023

$5,000.00 No Tonia Williams 12/27/2022

LaDonna Prentice ASO Provider Tutor 1/10/23-

ongoing

Varies No Kelley Parris 1/10/2023



Programs ONLY
FY 2023

Entity/Agency Contract Type Brief Description Contract 
Period

 Contract 
Amount 

 Board 
Approved Signed By Date Signed

Contract Signature Log

REDEFINERS WORLD 

LANGUAGES, INC.

Leading

Americorp Senior 

Demonstration program 

Literacy Tutoring

10/1/22 - 

9/30/23 $16,800 Yes Kelley Parris 11/15/2022

FLORIDA IMPACT, INC.

Leading

Family Dinner Table 11/1/22 - 

4/30/23 $36,060 Yes Kelley Parris 11/17/2022

GIRL SCOUTS OF WEST 

CENTRAL FLORIDA Uniting Girl Scout Troop Program

10/1/22 - 

9/30/23 322,118        Yes Kelley Parris 11/23/2022



Monthly Financial Report 

December 2022 

Table of Contents 

Page 
Number 

2. Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget

3. Financial Statement Category Definitions

4. Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

5. Revenue Variance Analysis

6. Expenditure Variance Analysis

7. Investments Statement

8. Five Year Projections

9. New Program Funding Report

10. New Program Funding Detail



FY 2022-2023
Original
Budget

Revenues
Ad-Valorem Taxes 61,929,405
Investment Income 892,000
Administrative Services Organization Funding 400,000
Other Community Partner Funding 410,000
Miscellaneous Income 11,000

Total Revenues 63,642,405

Expenditures
Program Expenditures:

Program Funding (Continuation Grants) 40,428,582
New Program Funding (unallocated) 12,825,000

Total Program Expenditures: 53,253,582
Operating

Employee Salaries and Benefits 5,507,400
Contracted Professional Services 634,840
Facility Expenditures 343,187
CBHC FRC Occupancy Expenditures 475,767
Other Operating 540,889

Total Operating 7,502,083
Capital Expenditures 4,000,000
Mandatory Government Fees 1,754,648
Total Expenditures 66,510,314
Net Spend Down of Fund Balance (2,867,909)

Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget

80%

3%
3%

8% 6%
Total Program
Expenditures
Mandatory Government
Fees
Direct Operating
Expenditures
Administrative Operating
Expenditures
Capital

2



Financial Statement Category Definitions 

• Revenue
• Ad-Valorem Taxes includes current and delinquent ad-valorem tax revenue and excess

fees returned to the Children’s Board originally paid to the county based on the tax revenue.
• Investment Income includes revenue from various interest-bearing accounts.
• Administrative Services Organization (ASO) funding represents contributions from other

funders specifically designated for use by providers in the community managed by the
Children’s Board ASO staff.  These dollars are also included in the program expenditure
line. Examples are Eckerd Connects, and Hillsborough County Board of County
Commissioners (BOCC).

• Other Community Partner funding represents funds contributed from community partners
that are added to our provider contract amounts and included in the program funding line,
for example, the School District of Hillsborough County and Hillsborough County BOCC.

• Miscellaneous Income consists of ASO fiscal agent fees, contributions, and any other
miscellaneous revenue received during the year.

• Expenditures
• Program Funding (Continuation Grants) represents provider contracts funded by

Children’s Board, property tax revenue and funds contributed from our community partners.
This amount also includes the dollars managed through the ASO to provide supports to
case management programs.

• New Program Funding (unallocated) includes dollars budgeted for new program contracts
and one-time funding that will be released and awarded by a competitive or application
process.

• Employee Salaries and Benefits include wages paid to all non-contractor employees.
Benefits represent costs provided for salaried and hourly wage employees including FICA,
life and health insurance, short-term and long-term disability insurance, unemployment, and
retirement benefits.

• Contracted Professional Services represents amounts budgeted for Hillsborough County
information technology services, legal, media buys, auditing, and other professional
services.

• Facility Expenditures represents necessary costs to operate the Children’s Board offices,
conference center, and seven (7) CBHC Family Resource Center (CBHC FRC) occupancy
expenditures, including utilities, information technology, maintenance, and repairs.

• Other Operating contains staff training, conference and meeting travel, postage, insurance,
promotional activities, printing, supplies, advertising for Truth In Millage (TRIM), budget ads
and other public notices, memberships, and subscriptions.  Also included are support
activities with provider agencies and community organizations for training and events.

• Capital Expenditures include the budget for building expenditures.
• Mandatory Government Fees include Tax Collector’s fee, Property Appraiser’s fee as well

as the City storm water fee.

3



December-2022
FY 2022- FY 2022- FY 2022- FY 2022-

2023 2023 2023 2023
YTD Budget YTD Actual Variance $ Variance %

Revenues
Ad-Valorem Taxes 52,350,684 52,701,239 350,555 1%
Investment Income 223,000 788,639 565,639 254%
Administrative Services Organization Funding 100,000 241,355 141,355 141%
Other Community Partner Funding 0 0 0 0%
Miscellaneous Income 2,750 3,489 739 27%

Total Revenues 52,676,434 53,734,722 1,058,288 2%

Expenditures
Program Expenditures:

Program Funding (Including Unallocated) 9,455,158 4,797,643 4,657,515 49%
Total Program Expenditures: 9,455,158 4,797,643 4,657,515 49%
Operating Expenditures

Employee Salaries and Benefits 1,376,850 1,277,949 98,901 7%
Contracted Professional Services 167,432 19,875 147,557 88%
Facility Expenditures 85,797 66,067 19,730 23%
CBHC FRC Occupancy Expenditures 118,942 107,249 11,693 10%
Other Operating 134,222 200,143 (65,921) -49%

Total Operating 1,883,243 1,671,283 211,960 11%

Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0%
Mandatory Government Fees 1,491,451 1,149,167 342,284 23%
Total Expenditures 12,829,852 7,618,093 5,211,759
Net Cash Flow 39,846,582 46,116,629 6,270,047

4



Revenue Variance Analysis 

Statement of Revenues 

December-2022
FY 2022- FY 2022- FY 2022- FY 2022-

2023 2023 2023 2023
YTD Budget YTD Actual Variance $ Variance %

Revenues
Ad-Valorem Taxes 52,350,684 52,701,239 350,555 1%
Investment Income 223,000 788,639 565,639 254%
Administrative Services Organization Funding 100,000 241,355 141,355 141%
Other Community Partner Funding 0 0 0 0%
Miscellaneous Income 2,750 3,489 739 27%

Total Revenues 52,676,434 53,734,722 1,058,288 2%

• Ad-Valorem Taxes
o This line is over the YTD budget by $350,555.  85% of the tax revenue budgeted has

been received to date.
• Investment Income

o The interest received year to date is over the YTD budget because interest rates have
increased.  This was budgeted at 1% and the current interest rate is 4.30% for LGIP and
0.60% for Wells Fargo.

• Administrative Services Organization
o ASO Funding revenue was over budget because ASO actual expenditures were over

budget (primarily BOCC-Social Services Homeless Prevention funds).
• Other Community Partner Funding

o Funding in this line will be received later in the year.
• Miscellaneous Income

o This line is over budget because of timing of receiving matching funds from the
insurance company.

5



Expenditure Variance Analysis 

Statement of Expenditures 

December-2022 FY 2022- FY 2022- FY 2022- FY 2022-
2023 2023 2023 2023

YTD Budget YTD Actual Variance $ Variance %
Expenditures
Program Expenditures:

Program Funding (Including Unallocated) 9,455,158 4,797,643 4,657,515 49%
Total Program Expenditures: 9,455,158 4,797,643 4,657,515 49%
Operating

Employee Salaries and Benefits 1,376,850 1,277,949 98,901 7%
Contracted Professional Services 167,432 19,875 147,557 88%
Facility Expenditures 85,797 66,067 19,730 23%
CBHC FRC Occupancy Expenditures 118,942 107,249 11,693 10%
Other Operating 134,222 200,143 (65,921) -49%

Total Operating 1,883,243 1,671,283 211,960 11%
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0%
Mandatory Government Fees 1,491,451 1,149,167 342,284 23%
Total Expenditures 12,829,852 7,618,093 5,211,759

• Program Expenditures
o Continuation Grants are under budget because certain providers are not current on invoicing the

Children’s Board, which includes a few large contracts (Easter Seals Florida, USF-HIPPY, USF-
PWPBS, HCC, Hispanic Services Council). Also, a significant portion of new program funding has
yet to be allocated.

o Leveraged Investments and ASO expenditures are over budget.
• Employee Salaries and Benefits

o This line is under budget because of vacant positions (3).
• Contracted Professional Services

o This line item is under budget because of the timing of legal services, audit fees, County IT
services and community education & awareness spending. Some of these items are billed in full
in later quarters.

• Facility Expenditures
o This line item is under budget due to the timing of spending. Lawn maintenance services, electric

service and building repairs/maintenance are under budget but are expected to return to
budgeted levels during the spring and summer months in subsequent quarters.

• CBHC FRC Occupancy Expenditures
o This line item is under budget due to the timing of spending. Building repairs/maintenance and

utility services are under budget but are expected to return to budgeted levels during the spring
and summer months in subsequent quarters.

• Other Operating
o This line item is over budget due to the timing of purchasing office furniture, making various

insurance payments, and renewing various large memberships/dues, all of which occurred at the
beginning of the year in the first quarter.

• Mandatory Government Fees
o This line item is under budget due to the timing of paying the property appraiser’s fees, but this is

expected to return to budgeted levels in subsequent quarters.

6



Investment Instrument Financial Institution Balance Maturity Yield

Checking Wells Fargo Government 
Advantage

809,038 1 day 0.60%

LGIP Florida State Board of 
Administration

112,797,012 N/A 4.30%

113,606,050

Investments Statement 
Children's Board Of Hillsborough County

December-2022

7



CHILDREN'S BOARD OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY
PROJECTIONS 
FY 2021 - 2022 to FY 2026 - 2027
Millage Rate .4589

FY 2021 - 
2022

 Budget

FY 2021 - 
2022 

Estimated 
Actual

FY 2022 - 
2023

 Budget

FY 2023 - 
2024

 Budget

FY 2024 - 
2025

 Budget

FY 2025 - 
2026

 Budget

FY 2026 - 
2027

 Budget

MILLAGE RATE 0.4589 0.4589 0.4589 0.4589 0.4589 0.4589 0.4589

53,833,708 54,343,000 61,929,405 68,395,557 74,860,170 80,672,197 86,616,262
Investment Income 66,000 550,000 892,000 886,488 813,138 674,939 567,287

1,815,000 1,345,743 810,000 810,000 810,000 810,000 810,000

Miscellaneous Income 168,000 131,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000
Total Revenue Available 55,882,708 56,369,743 63,642,405 70,103,045 76,494,308 82,168,136 88,004,549

Operating Expenditures 7,156,325 6,639,557 7,502,083 7,744,149 7,994,473 8,261,438 8,542,239

Mandatory Government Fees 1,554,993 1,444,941 1,754,648 1,956,884 2,141,125 2,306,768 2,476,175       

Building and Capital Reserve Expenditures 1,500,000       - 4,000,000 4,000,000       4,000,000       4,000,000       - 

37,505,024 33,270,974 40,428,582 54,009,973 61,025,433 80,466,666 83,584,643

New Program Funding (Unallocated) 9,070,000 1,998,577 12,825,000 5,925,000       17,425,000     2,425,000       2,925,000       

Total Expenditures 56,786,342 43,354,049 66,510,314 73,636,006 92,586,031 97,459,872 97,528,057

Net Income (Spend Down) (903,634) 13,015,694 (2,867,909) (3,532,961) (16,091,723) (15,291,736) (9,523,508)

Fund Balance
Total Fund Balance Beginning of Year 49,682,368 51,892,574 64,908,268 62,040,360 58,507,398 42,415,675 27,123,939
Net Income (Spend Down of Fund Balance) (903,634) 13,015,694 (2,867,909) (3,532,961) (16,091,723) (15,291,736) (9,523,508)
Total Fund Balance End of Year after Spend Down 48,778,734 64,908,268 62,040,360 58,507,398 42,415,675 27,123,939 17,600,431

Less  Non-Spendable Fund Balance Reserve (19,153) (19,732) (19,732) (19,732) (19,732) (19,732) (19,732)
Less Committed Fund Balance Reserve (Operating Reserve) (2,844,996) (2,844,996) (3,332,167) (3,689,164) (4,638,560) (4,882,740) (4,886,156)
Less Committed Fund Balance Reserve (Building & Capital  Reserve) (681,627) (681,627) (981,627) (1,281,627) (1,581,627) (1,881,627) (2,181,627)
Less Assigned Fund Balance Reserve (34,678,101) (47,307,837) (44,439,928) (40,906,967) (24,815,244) (9,523,508)

10,554,857 14,054,076 13,266,905 12,609,908 11,360,512 10,816,332 10,512,916

Non-Spendable Fund Balance Reserve includes pre-paid expenditures.
Committed Fund Balance Reserve includes the building/capital reserve and operational reserve of 5.01% of the budgeted expenditures for the year.
Assigned Fund Balance Reserve consists of the future commitments included in the future projections that spend down from the fund balance.
Unassigned Fund Balance represents the difference between the total fund balance and all reserves above.

The reserve amounts above are determined and approved by the Board each year during the budgeting process.

Definitions: 

Projected Tax Revenue (millage rate @ .4589 w/ 15.31% inc. in tax base 
in FY 2023, 10.5% inc. in FY 2024, 9.5% inc. in FY 2025, 7.8% inc. in 
FY 2026, 7.4% inc. in FY 2027)

Administrative Services Organization and Other Community Partner 

Program Funding (Continuation Grants)

Unassigned Fund Balance

updated 8-10-228



Children's Board of Hillsborough County
FY 2022-2023 NEW PROGRAM FUNDING (UNALLOCATED) REPORT

Regular Board Meeting - January 26, 2023

Beginning 
Budget Adjustments

Revised 
Budget

 YTD Amount 
Approved 

 YTD 
Uncommitted 

Funds 
Available 

 Current 
Funding 
Requests 

 Uncommitted 
Funds 

Available 

Technical Assistance

Funding (Agencies 
Not Currently Funded by 
CBHC) 130,000         130,000         - 130,000 130,000 

Technical Assistance

Funding (Agencies

Currently Funded by 
CBHC) 70,000 70,000 - 70,000 70,000 

Summer Passport for 
Kids 200,000         200,000         - 200,000 200,000 

Leading Grants 
(Summer Funding) 500,000         500,000         - 500,000 500,000 
Emerging Needs 
Funding 300,000         300,000         36,060 263,940 263,940 

Emergency Funding 400,000         400,000         - 400,000 400,000 

Match 300,000         300,000         16,800 283,200 283,200 

Technical Assistance - 
Neighborhood Assoc. 25,000 25,000 - 25,000 25,000 
Leading Grants - 
Small NonProfits 1,400,000      1,400,000      - 1,400,000       1,400,000       
Investment Grants - 
All Four Focus Areas 3,500,000      3,500,000      - 3,500,000       2,691,698      808,302 
Uniting Grant - 
Padres de Crianza 500,000         500,000         - 500,000 500,000 

Uniting Grant - 
Support a New Program 1,000,000      1,000,000      - 1,000,000       1,000,000       
Uniting Grant - 
Swim Lessons & 
Education 500,000         500,000         - 500,000 500,000 
Investment Grant - 
Collaborate w/ SDHC 
Social Work Dept 1,000,000      1,000,000      807,709 192,291 192,291 
Strategic Initiatives - 
After School 
Enhancements 500,000         500,000         - 500,000 500,000 

Strategic Initiatives - 
Ongoing Services 2,500,000      2,500,000      - 2,500,000       2,500,000       

Totals 12,825,000    - 12,825,000    860,569 11,964,431      2,691,698      9,272,733       

Original Continuation Funding Budget 40,428,582     
Actual Contract Amount Negotiated 40,074,172     

 Additional Amount Available from Continuation Funding 354,410 

Dana Shores Civic Association TA (2,871) 
Balance Avaiilable 351,539 

9



Regular Board Meeting - January 26, 2023

Agency Program  Funding Description

 Technical 
Assistance 

Funding 
(Agencies 

Not 
Currently 

Funded by 
CBHC) 

 Technical 
Assistance 

Funding 
(Agencies 
Currently 

Funded by 
CBHC) 

 Summer 
Passport 
for Kids 

 Leading 
Grants

Summer 
Funding 

 Emerging 
Needs 

Funding 
 Emergency 

Funding  Match 

 Technical 
Assistance - 
Neighborhoo

d 
Associations 

 Leading 
Grants - 

Small 
NonProfits 

 Investment 
Grants - 
All Four 
Focus 
Areas 

 Uniting 
Grant - 

Padres de 
Crianza 

 Uniting 
Grant - 

Support a 
New 

Program 

 Uniting 
Grant - 
Swim 

Lessons 
& 

Education 

 Investment 
Grant - 

Collaborate 
w/ SDHC 

Social Work 
Dept 

 Strategic 
Initiatives - 

After School 
Enhancements 

 Strategic 
Initiatives -
Ongoing 
Services 

Family 
Impact, Inc.

Family Dinner 
Table

The program will support 
children, families, and 
stakeholders by conducting 
focus groups, listening 
sessions, meetings, and 
Community Needs 
Assessments to produce local 
recommendations addressing 
community access to nutritious 
food and health resources. 
Additionally, the program will 
participate in community 
events to conduct outreach 
activities and distribute flyers 
with information about federal 
nutrition programs and 
community programs. Services 
will be accessible countywide.    36,060 

Redefiners Americorp

The Americorp Senior 
Demonstration Program is a 
Match Grant to recruit 
volunteers to provide literacy 
tutoring services at Mort 
Elementary School and 
ReDefiners World Languages 
Center.  The program will 
support children and families 
by assigning volunteer tutors to 
64 children, Kindergarten 

through 5th grade during 
school hours and out of 
school time.    16,800 

Metropolitan 
Ministries

Pathways to 
Hope

Provides resources to families 
experiencing housing insecurity 
at 10 Hillsborough County 
Schools with the goal of 
preventing homelessness.     807,709 

FY 2022-2023 Approved Uncommitted Program Funding Detail

10



Regular Board Meeting - January 26, 2023

Agency Program  Funding Description

 Technical 
Assistance 

Funding 
(Agencies 

Not 
Currently 

Funded by 
CBHC) 

 Technical 
Assistance 

Funding 
(Agencies 
Currently 

Funded by 
CBHC) 

 Summer 
Passport 
for Kids 

 Leading 
Grants

Summer 
Funding 

 Emerging 
Needs 

Funding 
 Emergency 

Funding  Match 

 Technical 
Assistance - 
Neighborhoo

d 
Associations 

 Leading 
Grants - 

Small 
NonProfits 

 Investment 
Grants - 
All Four 
Focus 
Areas 

 Uniting 
Grant - 

Padres de 
Crianza 

 Uniting 
Grant - 

Support a 
New 

Program 

 Uniting 
Grant - 
Swim 

Lessons 
& 

Education 

 Investment 
Grant - 

Collaborate 
w/ SDHC 

Social Work 
Dept 

 Strategic 
Initiatives - 

After School 
Enhancements 

 Strategic 
Initiatives -
Ongoing 
Services 

FY 2022-2023 Approved Uncommitted Program Funding Detail

Housing 
Authority of 
the City of 
Tampa Building Hope

Provides families and children 
living in Tampa Housing 
Authority’s selected 
developments and their 
surrounding zip codes with 
positive experiences to build 
resilience.  Families participate in 
case management and quarterly 
events.  Children receive 
developmental screening.  
Elementary/middle school youth 
receive afterschool and summer 
programs.     702,727 

St. Joseph's 
Hospital, Inc.

Community 
Maternity Clinic

Install and operate a community 
maternity clinic to provide holistic 
prenatal care to uninsured and 
underinsured pregnant individuals 
in Hillsborough County to increase 
access to care and improve health 
and safety for children.     702,297 

Easter Seals 
Florida, Inc.

The Incredible 
Years with 
Easter Seals

A set of interlocking, 
comprehensive, and 
developmentally based programs 
targeting parents, teacher, and 
children.  Programs are designed 
to work jointly to promote 
emotional, social, and academic 
competence and to prevent, 
reduce, and treat behavioral and 
emotional problems in children 
ages 3‐8.     519,958 

Florida State 
University, 
Learning 
Systems 
Institute

Cognitively 
Guided 
Instruction (CGI) 
Project

Evidence‐based mathematics 
teacher professional development 
and school year support to VPK‐
3rd grade teachers in Hillsborough 
County Public Schools. Teachers in 
the program will have more 
accurate knowledge of student’s 
mathematics learning progression 
helping them make more 
informed decisions about 
teaching strategies.     766,716 

TOTAL              -                -              -              -      36,060               -     16,800 -                  -    2,691,698              -                -               -       807,709 -     -   

Total Approved 860,569 
Total Current Requests 2,691,698 

11



 

 

  

Good News  
  
  
  
  
  

 

from our funded partners 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
January I 2023 

  

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Supporting and Empowering Educational and Developmental Services (SEEDS) celebrated 
education, health, and safety with families throughout the summer break by hosting two 
summer events presenting services and supports requested by families. It started with the 
SEEDS Summer Reading Carnival and closed out with Swimming Back to School. Both 
events included free books to support reading, educational resources, and valuable health 
and safety information. These events were well-attended by the community.  Several 
community providers participated in making these events successful by offering great 
resources and supportive services.  
 
These providers included: A! SLS Tutoring services, Bay Area Legal Services, Bess the Book 
Bus, Career Source Of Tampa Bay, Center for Autism Related Disabilities (CARD), Children’s 
Board Family Resource Centers, Crisis Center of Tampa Bay 2-1-1, Hillsborough County 
Sheriff’s Office, MyOn, The Life Center, Suncoast Kids, Tampa Family Health Centers, Ms. 
Wiochelle Brigham (tutoring support), and generous donations provided by the Glazer 
Children’s Museum, along with educational material from Hillsborough County Public 
Libraries.  
 
Food and fun activities were included. The attendees shared their excitement and 
appreciation for the services and support shared over the summer break. Families were 
able to make meaningful connections and lasting family memories. SEEDS is looking 
forward to a successful 2022-2023 school year! 

 
 
 

 

 

 
(Continues on the next page) 
 

Children’s Home Network 
 

Supporting and Empowering Educational and Developmental Services 
(SEEDS) 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

                                                                                        
 
           
 
 
    
 
                                                          
 

Children’s Home Network 
 

Supporting and Empowering Educational and Developmental Services 
(SEEDS) 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Teen Parent Engagement Program (formerly known as Woman to Woman) had the 
opportunity to visit the Glazer Children’s Museum. This monthly workshop was an outing 
that the teen participants requested due to wanting to spend more time with their children 
in monthly workshops.  
 
The parents could interact with their children during positive and imaginative play. This 
also allowed the teens to observe their child’s communication, gross motor, fine motor, 
personal social, and problem-solving skills.  
 
The mentors and staff assisted the teens in navigating through the museum with their 
children and being supportive of the needs of the participants.  
 
Throughout the museum, all the teens had smiles on their faces and expressed that they 
were thankful for the opportunity to visit the Glazer Children’s Museum and will be looking 
to return. 
 
The program is thankful for the generosity of Glazer Children’s Museum for their donation 
and allowing the program participants to explore additional educational/ play 
opportunities in the community.  
  
The attached collages are from the fun-filled day at Glazer Children’s Museum. Teen 
Participants, Babies, Mentors, and Staff.  
  

Gulf Coast Jewish Family and Community 
Services 

 

Teen Parent Engagement Program 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Gulf Coast Jewish Family and Community 
Services 

 

Teen Parent Engagement Program 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Gulf Coast Jewish Family and Community 
Services 

 

Teen Parent Engagement Program 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gulf Coast Jewish Family and Community 
Services 

 

Teen Parent Engagement Program 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Healthy Start Coalition of Hillsborough 
County 

 

HealthySteps Hillsborough  
 

Gulf Coast Jewish Family and Community 
Services 

 

Teen Parent Engagement Program 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Redefiners World Languages 
 

Multilingual Citizens Program (MCP) 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Readers in Motion hosts STEM Family engagement events each fall to promote quality time, 

creativity and learning! These after-school events are a fun way for children and families to 

spend time together while learning and teaching each other.  

Activities are carefully designed to be JUST BEYOND the children’s capability to do on their 

own, so parents have to help! Parents are engaged in the fun and the POSSIBILITY of 

education. Many classroom teachers dedicate their time to attending to and engaging parents 

who may not participate in the school in any other way. Our Education Advocates also attend 

and introduce themselves to parents as other adults who care about their child’s education. 

On November 30th, Readers in Motion hosted the first Family Engagement Event of the school 

year with STEM partner, Bricks 4 Kidz at Oak Grove Elementary! Children, siblings, and 

parents joined teachers and Readers in Motion’s Education Advocate volunteers to create 

LEGO mosaics! Through these hands-on activities, children feel supported by their loved 

ones, and caregivers experience a creative way to encourage education.  

Parents experience the value of taking time from their 

daily routine to make special memories with their 

children. Offering an experience that is not only fun but 

educational and challenging is one to remember! Parents 

expressed how happy they were to participate and how 

unique and educational this activity was. 

 

 

Thank you, Children’s Board of Hillsborough County! 

 
 

Seniors in Service of Tampa Bay 
 

Readers in Motion 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 
 

Testimonial  
 

 
 
“Reviewing the questionnaires brought up ideas for things I had not yet tried with my baby. 
It was great at providing ideas. I also liked the feedback regarding my child’s development 
because it is hard to know what is normal. It gave us perspective on the developmental 
stage of my child.” 
 

- Mom Sarah and Safe Baby graduate😊 
 
 

Healthy Start Coalition of Hillsborough 
County 

 

Safe Baby Plus 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Healthy Families Support Specialists 
worked with their families on holiday 
crafts. They also worked with families on 
toy and holiday decoration safety. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Healthy Start Coalition of Hillsborough 
County 

 

Safe Baby Plus 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
We had a holiday party at Just Elementary School on December 14, 2022, that was a total 
success. The students had cheese & pepperoni pizza, Christmas cookies, and juice – as well 
as plenty of candy! We turned on festive music, and the kids did several activities 
throughout the afternoon.   
  
The students made snowmen out of the letters in their names, decorated paper ornaments 
& stockings with markers & glitter glue, made edible Christmas trees out of ice cream cones 
& colored icing, and completed a holiday scavenger hunt! 
  
They had so much fun, AND each student went home with a gift! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Boys & Girls Clubs of Tampa Bay 
 

AfterZone Elementary School Initiative 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This is a four-year-old Maze.  When her vision was screened at her preschool, the Preserve 
Vision Florida team determined that she has astigmatism in both eyes. This irregular 
curvature in the eye’s lens causes images to appear distorted.  PVF set her up for a follow-
up appointment with a partner optometrist, and she received these lovely glasses that 
corrected the curvature.  Now seeing her world with 20/20 vision, Maze keeps her new 
glasses safe in her puppy Lenz Frenz eyeglasses case.  Her family is very grateful for the 
early identification of Maze’s vision issue so she can see her bright future! 
 

 

Preserve Vision Florida 
 

Children’s Vision Health and Safety Services 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Champions for Children’s and Cove Behavioral 
Health’s Family Focus program hosted a “Cookies, 
Cocoa and Crafts” family event for their 
participants on December 20, 2022. Family Focus 
participants, along with their children & family 
members, enjoyed listening to holiday music while 
they visited, drank hot cocoa, ate yummy cookies, 
and made holiday crafts. Crafts included: 
decorating stockings, making ornaments, painting 
holiday handprints, and making Reindeer food and 
Elf snacks.  
   
 

Champions for Children 
 

Family Focus 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Testimonial  

 
You guys were incredible. I know you deal 
with many children, but I am grateful you 
provided such a safe and supportive camp for 
[my child] and his Cochlear Implants. I know 
any parent would feel this way, but I am 
thankful that you communicated that he was 
fine after one "tough" drop-off. The education 
was wonderful, but I am impressed with the 
support. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Glazer Children’s Museum 
 

Children’s Board Summer Passport program – Camp Imagination 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Big Sister Deidre and 
Little Sister Junielle have 
been matched together 
for more than four years. 
Deidre always takes 
advantage of the events 
Big Brothers Big Sisters 
of Tampa Bay provides 
for our program 
participants. The two 
enjoy ice skating, 
bowling, collaging, and 
being active! Deidre has 
introduced Junielle to all 
sorts of new concepts 
ranging from Juneteenth 
to journaling.   
 

 
Now that Junielle has finished middle school and started her freshmen year, the match has 
put in extra effort to make plans for Junielle to go to college after graduation. Usually, 
Junielle has been able to maintain high grades, but she received a C in one of her classes 
this year. Junielle reached out to Deidre and received the help she needed.  
 
Over the past few years, Junielle and her family have dealt with some hardships resulting in 
multiple relocations. Deidre always stayed in contact with Junielle and her family to 
maintain their match visit schedule. Junielle shared that if she's feeling sad but then goes 
out with Deidre, she "forgets all about" what was troubling her. Junielle’s parent/guardian 
has described Deidre as “beyond amazing” due to her positive impacts on the entire 
household. We are so proud to continue supporting this Match!  
 
 

Big Brothers Big Sisters of Tampa Bay 
 

1-to-1 Mentoring (Middle) 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Get Moving! and Pasta Packs host a new 
cooking class for kids seven to fourteen years 
old. The class is held at Harvest Hope Park to 
teach children how to cook delicious and 
nutritious meals. The first class had a great 
turnout, with 25 people in attendance 
learning how to make fried chicken tenders, 
apple salad, and a dip to take home to their 
families. Pasta Packs was created out of a 
desire to help children and families create 
memorable moments at home with our hand-
rolled fresh pasta dishes. After Chef Nic was 
laid off due to the COVID-19 pandemic, he 

found the opportunity to launch Pasta Packs, an idea on the back burner, to continue 
creating delicious food and provide a new kind of culinary experience for all to enjoy. Kids 
cooking class is specially designed for children who have the desire to learn how to bake 
and cook. Chef Nic from Pasta Packs teaches children modern techniques and the culinary 
industry’s classics. Classes are taught by Chef Nic, that value the joy of teaching the culinary 
arts and encourage learning and creativity.  The kids enjoyed the experience and said, “It 
was amazing to see how the food tasted,” and remarked, "Cooking is fun, and I learned a 
lot.” 
 

 
 

 

University Area Community Development 
Corporation 

 

Get Moving! Mind, Body, Soul 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“We came here for the opportunity of a lifetime, and we were left stranded….” Donald left 
his country to pursue his dream of becoming a professional athlete and moved to the 
United States. Shortly after the big move, that dream came true as he was offered a position 
as a professional athlete in another city. He lived the life he always wanted for himself and 
his beautiful family of seven. 
 
Donald’s dream quickly faded after his first season. He was not asked to return, and his 
contract ended. His dream of being a professional athlete and providing for his family was 
snatched away. Donald and his wife, Ashley, had difficulty making ends meet without 
income. The seven of them were forced to move to Florida, where they could stay with 
family. They tried finding employment to support their family and have a place to call 
home; however, no one would hire them due to housing instability. 
 
Their four-year-old son, José, was diagnosed with a life-threatening blood disorder during 
this time. This required the family to take José to the hospital three times a week for 
treatment and health checkups. Quickly burning through any funds left, the family 
ultimately became homeless. 
 
Ashley called 211 for help and was introduced to Dawning Family Services. Donald, Ashley 
& their five children entered our Emergency Bridge Housing, which provided a safe and 
secure home so they could focus on their son’s health, finding employment, and 
transitioning into permanent housing. The family worked closely with their Housing and 
Support Specialist to identify affordable housing opportunities through our Rapid Re-
Housing Program, and their hard work paid off. They now have a place to call home. 
 
Dawning Family Services has succeeded in keeping this family together during their crisis 
and is providing them with opportunities that will change the trajectory of their future and 
their children’s lives.  
  

Dawning Family Services 
 

Housing for Success 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The CBFRC in North Tampa facilitated a family fall program that included pumpkin 
painting and various other arts and crafts projects. 125+ services were provided to 

children and families that day, documented in the Attendance and Needs Tracking System 
(ANTS). 

 

 

 

Children’s Board Family Resource Centers 
 

North Tampa 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The CBFRC in South County celebrated Angela's 15th birthday with a quinceañera! 🎉 
Angela and her family have been Center Members for years, and they not only participate in 
many activities but also assist and share with other families who come. Angela’s family is 
well known and loved around the Center and has been featured in quarterly Success 
Stories. Angela’s family has participated in many Autumn-themed activities. 

 

 

 
 

 

Children’s Board Family Resource Centers 
 

South County 


	ATTACHMENT 2- Complete December 2022 Financial Statements.pdf
	December 2022 Financial Statements
	Projections
	New Prog Fund Detail


	AGENDA: 
	TABLE OF CONTENTS: 


